
6162 S. Willow Drive, Suite 320
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
303.770.8884 • GallowayUS.com

October 24, 2019

Lee Alverson
Commerce City – Public Works
8602 Rosemary Street
Commerce City, CO 80022

RE: Crystal Packaging – 9155 Boston Street – Drainage Conformance Letter

Dear Mr. Alverson,

This drainage conformance letter has been prepared for the Crystal Packaging development at the southwest corner
of E. 92nd Avenue and Boston Street at 9155 Boston Street in Commerce City, Colorado.  This project is located
within the Irondale Industrial District Filing No. 3.  The objective of this letter is to show that the proposed drainage
for the site conforms to the current Commerce City Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria Manual, the
current Urban Drainage and Flood Control District Urban Storm Drainage Criteria Manual, Volumes 1, 2, & 3, and
the approved Final Drainage Report for Irondale Industrial District Filing No. 3 prepared by Merrick & Company in
March 1981.

The project site is approximately 6.91 acres of industrial development.  It consists of a 70,915 SF commercial
distribution warehouse, loading docks, outdoor tank storage field, and dirt parking lot.  A portion of the site is
undeveloped and consists of native grasses.  Proposed improvements consist of new landscaping along Boston
Street and installing crushed asphalt over the existing dirt parking lot.  These improvements will account for
approximately 1.96 acres of land disturbance for this project. The project site is bounded by E. 92nd Avenue to the
north, Boston Street to the east, an existing railroad track to the south, and vacant land to the west.

Regional water quality and stormwater detention is provided with the Irondale Industrial District Filing No. 3
development and neither on-site water quality nor stormwater detention are required to be constructed for this site.
The crushed asphalt is assumed to be equivalent to packed gravel in the hydrology calculations.  Both crushed
asphalt and packed gravel are less densely packed than asphalt pavement and have similarly higher porosity and
void spaces, allowing more stormwater infiltration.  The Urban Storm Drainage Criteria Manual Table 6-3 showing
recommended percentage imperviousness values is included with this letter for reference.

Per the hydrologic calculations included with this letter the new composite site imperviousness is 57.15%.  The
approved Final Drainage Report for Irondale Industrial District Filing No. 3 provided a CUHP runoff analysis for the
regional stormwater pond that assumed a composite imperviousness of 88.06% for the Irondale Industrial District
Filing No. 3.  As such, the Crystal Packaging site is compliant with the original drainage design and will not have an
adverse impact on the regional stormwater pond.

I affirm that the proposed drainage design for Crystal Packaging in Commerce City, Colorado is in conformance
with existing site grading and drainage conditions, the current Commerce City Storm Drainage Design and
Technical Criteria Manual, the current Urban Drainage and Flood Control District Urban Storm Drainage Criteria
Manual, Volumes 1, 2, & 3, and the approved Final Drainage Report for Irondale Industrial District Filing No. 3
prepared by Merrick & Company in March 1981.

Sincerely,
GALLOWAY

Adam Koester, PE
Civil Engineering Project Manager
AdamKoester@gallowayus.com
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Subdivision: 9155 Boston Street Project Name: Crystal Packaging
Location: CO, Commerce City Project No.:

Calculated By: JKG
Checked By: ARK

Date: 10/21/19
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